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Crascrilbe the prasent and original (i known) physical appeorance

Situated ou Godshaw Hill, one of the several prowmiuent hills of Tryon, the Pine COrest
Irn consists of the inn and ten cottages with a total of 34 guest rooms and Jdining

and gnthering facilities. The resort couplex blends with the otherwise residential
Godezhaw Hili neighborhood. Inconspicuouﬂ wooden signs divect the visitor down Pine

+ Crest Lane, a cul-de-sac terminating in a loop lined with private residences that
encircle the Imn. A large millstone on end at the head of & landscaped plot in front
of the Inn marks the main entrance at the beginning of the loop. The visitor may
follow the narrow drive to the front of this building or continue along the loop to the
cottagés, Manicured lawns, which afford spectacular views of the surrounding ceuatryside,
particularly during the winter months, extend from the main building to embrace several
of the cottoges, while wooded iareas surround those cottages on the periphery.

The two—-story-with=attic Inn and three one-andwonn—h 1f eteory cottages situated in an

arc to the norith of the Innm compose the nucleus of the Pine Crest Inn complex, These
structures were erected around 1906 as a tuberculosis sanitorium by an unidentified
builder in a standard version ¢f the popular Neo-Classical Revival stvle. Pedimented
gables, wide cornice boaids, and attached one-story shed porchec supported by Tuscan
columne distinguish thege weatherboarded structures. The Inn is a long aud broad
building with a narrower wing across its sontn end which renders the building a modified
"T". One exterior and two interior bwick chimneys punctuate the gabled roof Individual
and coupled double-hung sash windews, eitiher mul: &plewpaned OT onE-oveir=ome, are
symnztrically pozitioned arocund the building.

A few plate glass and leuvered windows reflect remodelling which inciudes ssveral
additions. Except for the projecting gable-roofed portion over the main, north
entrance and a portion to the west of this entrance, 'the wrap-avound porch was
einclosed during the 1930s to.expand the dining and living areas oun the first floor.
The two-story addition to the southeast corner of the building is a more recent
expansion of the service area. A wide terrace aleng the west flank of the building
and a massive, single~shcouldered stone chimney with an exterior fiveplace on the east

conatitute the most striking additioms.

In expanding the intericr space, these alterations have net marred its integyr itj
determined by plaster walls and woodworking, wainscoting and exposed heams of hear

pine on the first floor. The stone chimney serves a wide dining room firveplace, tﬂb
hearth and mantle of which came from the wid Saluda, W. €., post office. 1m11d1 bl

the inteviors of the cottages, the individual guest rooms that occupy the second flour
are panelled in knotty pine.

0

The three cottages contemporary with the Inn have cross gablo roofs and two interiow
brick chimneys with corhelled caps. During the 1930s, doors replaced the vents in
‘the front gables and the projecting gable roofs above the first—story entrances were
replaced with flat roofs and railings to form entrsnces to second-floor suitez. These
three cottages vary in the placement of the outside staircase to these second-sltory
entrances and the first-story porch railings. The porch supports of Building #1 have

been replaced with chamfered posts. ,
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Six of the remaining seven cottages, in a variety of stvles, exude a certain air of
rusticity. Cavter Brown, who cuu&bllbh@d the Inn in 1917, designed and bu: four of
thmse cottages. During the 19205 he built the Gatehouse as his private reszidence. The
one-story frame, gable-roofed, H-shaped building with a large exterior stone chimney
lias been remodeled in recent years by the current owners who added a small, one-story,

gable-roofed wing and re-sided the entire building in rusticated weatherboarding.

Bilt in the early 1920s, the Woodcutter's Cottage is a small, jerkin-headed frame
structure with shed-rogfed wings that sports an interior stone chimney, attic vents of

cut=cut boards and decorative cut—out bargeboard aleng the roofline of the main facade.

Originally sided in a horizontal Gemman siding that interlciled and extended beyond the
curners in emu’ation of log constvuction, the cottage recently has been sheathed in a
material that resewbles reverse board aund batten siding.

Brown designed the German-sidazd, splaved gable~roofed, multi-level cottage built into the
side of a hill as & servize building. Known as the Ice Cube for its bascment room that
provided vegetable storage, the cottage also containzd a compressor, a laundry, and servants
quarters. After having fallen into dlSUcD for several years it was ronovated as a guest
cottage hy the current' owners. Deepn eaves with projecting beams and an exterior stone
chimney that penefrates the w0o6f overhang distinguish the cottage.

Around 1933 Brown designed the one-story, L-shaped gable~rcofed house of load-bearing
random-ashlar construction with an interior stone chimney and metal-framed casement

‘windows.

Two of the cottages are “re-cyelad" structures. DBrown moved the components of the Twain
and Swayback cottages from the Tennessee mountains around 1935 and reconstructed them

au resort accommocdations. When he re—assembled the half-dovetailed, hewn logs of the
latter buiiding, iie sheathed the gables with rusticated weatherboarding and reconstructed
the gable roof so that it sags in the middle. The Twain Coliage consists of two hewn

log cabins with interior stone chimneys that are saddle-notched on the south corners

and half-dovetailed on the north. A gable-rcofed section construcited by Brown connects
the two gable~roofed cabins so that the resultant cottage is H-shauad

oo 9] E

The front half
of the gable-rpofed connector ‘s a recessed porch with a wall of random-coursed ashlar
that ie the base of a wide chimney.

Although incompatible with the rustic quality of the other cottages, the 1960 L-shaped,
cne=story Britton Cottage sheathed in cedar shakes fits comfortably into the complex

due to its mature landscaping.
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Shatoment of Signtficanca (in one paragraph)

The Pine Crest Zun is the last of the four major inns still in operation associated
with the early development of Tryon as one of the finest resort communities of western
North Carclina. The moderating climate and the notable scenery of the small town on
the. southiern slope of the Blue Ridge Mountains began to attract summer visitors from

s

across the nation after the avrival of the railread in 1877. Awong these early visiters
ware persons suffering from various respiratory ailments, and the original four buildings

i
of the Pine Crest were built in 1906 as a tuberculosis sanaterium called the Thermal
Belt Sanatorium. In 3917 Garter Brown, a young resort developer from Castle Park,
Michigzan, took over the property and managed it as the Pine Crest Inn. Brown attracted
a large clientele, many of whom stayed and contributed to the growth of Tryon. He
w2s also the moving force behind Tryon's earning a nztional rveputation as an egquestrian
center. Brown's architectural interests also were manifested throughout the arvea and
are most evident at the Fine Crest whers he designed and built four co and made
other improvements to ‘the property. The inn and ifts associated cottages are simple
st the unpretentious comfort that characterizes Tryon's overall

o

Criteria Assese

A. Assceiated with the early development of Trvon into one of the best knowrn resort
communities in the region,

B. Associatad with the life and work o& Cavier Brown, the individual wost responsibi
for Tryen's successful twentieth century development and its national reputation as a
gquestrian center. '

a
L

[~




FHR-R-30G (1178

Continvation shest E%mm a8 nne
The of the Pine Ct Eut Imin and the town of Tryon ave intertwined. Tryon has
a: in many areas, 1 1ts vineyards to its crafts and funifs e=-making to

NG

iety of architecture, but it is perhaps 1lts reputation as a resori with which
and friendly

-
or
I
<
[
=
b

) =

i5 ha identified. Bogend by its climate, recrveational activities
citizens, Tryon's resurt status is embodied in the numercus inns and boarding houses
which have operated over ths years and in turn have contributed to the success

of the other endeavors gociated with Tryon, Since the late 708, Ffour hoat
MeAboy -Inn, Cak Hall Hotel, Pine Crest Inn and Thousand Pices Ino--have signified Trvon's
fame as a resort. Of thege fO“T, only tho Pipne Crest Inn continues o opcrat_ and maintain
the high standards esty! = by its developer, Carvter Brown, standa zd rthat create a
reputation cf exceilence for its gracious hespitali ty that is unpretentious yebt is in
g8 po

¥
sition as a resort.

keeping with the Iun

Inn and, indeed, with wmch of Tryon's architectural and gporting developments, pri
to Brown's avrival in Tryon the Inn prorerty wis clocely associated with the town
reputation for a healthy ciimate that initally attracted those ailing from lung diseases.
Since tha advent in Tryon of tho Spartanburg-Asheville Railway in 1877, Tryon's locaticn
in the Thermal Belt~-ap area in the foothills of the Blue Ridge Mountains protected from
the northern winds so that the. temperature is milder thon in Dhlghballﬂg towns--had been
attracting those seeking a hﬁaTthy climate. Priov to 1877 there was littls major commerce
in the area and no tourism as it is kaown taday.l During the early 1870s Dv, L R.
VeAboy had purchased the Dr. Columbus 1ills House just uovth of Tryon and 3
and converted it to the McAhoy House, soon to become a popular inn. With
of the railread, many of a who had been travelling to Asheville, famous ;
tubereulosic sanitoriumes, to v141t Trvon and the McAboy House in search of the
"eure'; apparently many of ?ba invalids attracted to the warmer climate and pleasant
ShV“QUde” s of Tryen were disillusicned with the umﬁredlﬁtable Asheville weather

Although Carter Brow: name was synonymous for several deuadﬂ ‘with the Pine Crest
i
a

tired of © o arvound s0 many tuberculosis pat1mﬂtg.¢ in 1”0@, Lhrus doctors, Barle
Grady, E. M. Sally, and W. R. Engél, zcquired thie nucleus of th 'rest Ton propsrty

idings

asd proceeded to have what would become the main inn building and hL g5 one, two and
three, erected as a tuberculosis sanitorium.? Altiough several other boszding houses
and the Oak P&li Hotel (which operated until 1979 when it was razed to make room fn“ a

e established aloong Melrose Avsnue near the center of town, it

condominium pris] wer
appears that the Thermzl Belt Sanitoriuwm, Inc. constituted Tryon's first full-fledged

sanltorium.

During the first decade of the twentieth century, Tryon experienced a greab deal of
Crafts operations were established and

tand values rose rapidly as investors became
interested in the town. The number of visitors, more and morc freqpemt}y tourists

instead of patients, rapidly increased. Many of thesc visitors were tvuln passengers who
had time to look arcund Tryen durlng stopovers and liked it eo much that ther decided o
stay, often becomiug seasonal vwisitors and permanent residents. Property vecords indicate,
however, that one terprise that did wnot succeed was Thermal Belt Sanitorium, In December
of 1211, E. M. Sally pvrﬁhased the interests of Drs. Grady and Harle, and when Cavier
Brown avvived in Tryon in 1917, the preperty had been idle for several vears,

e
B
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In 1916, Uarter Brown had graduated from the Uniwversity of Illinois, married and

Tﬂmgdi““ﬁly purchased from his uncle, John Parr, the Castle (later known as Castle
Park), o modest summer resort nnmar Holland, Michigan. In September of 1917, rcalizing
that the winter would bo long and wnproductive after their first season of operating

the tle, the Browns visited Tryon at the wvrgirgof Mrs. Bicwn's oxaﬂuhotth who recen:ly
bad vizited the area.?” They were so impressed with the town and the sanitorium property
that they veuied the property from Dr. Sally for the winter seasons of 1917-1918 and
1918-1919 wnd with H. A. Wilkie, Mrs. Brown!s father, purchased it in 1920.%  The Browns
named the Trvon property the Pine Crest Tnn and continued to operate it from (ctober o
May until 1951, (They operated the Castle from June through Septembsr uutil 1977.)

Over the years the Browns upgraded and enlarged the Pine Crest Inn and attracted

substantial "carriage trade" clientele to Tryon. Many of their guests continued a trend
that had bheen established in Tryon duving the late nlnetecnuh century by buying property

in the town. These seasonal or year-vound residents in turn attracted others who would

stay at the Inn and perpatuate the tysund., Thus  the Pine Crest In: became a focal point
for Tryon's growth and ultimate development.

The Pine Crest Inn has. entertained a diverse assoriment of guests during its 62 vears of
operation. They include South:-Carolina go Vﬂrnor Jimmy Byrns; "Lefty" Flynn of silent movi
fame :nd his wife Nora Langhorme, the screen's Gibson Girl; author F. Scott Fitzgerald;
Lord and Lady Astor; aad the historians Mary and Charles Besrd (he wrote The Republic

in the Weodcutter's Cottags). Industrial magnates 1nclude Harvy Ferguson of Ferguson
Tractors and Johmn Kimberly of Kiwberly-Clark Paper . Many of the guests were upper-—
mid-westernars, due to Carter Brown's ties there, and the majority were saporiing poople.

Although many Pine Crest Inn guestswere merely lookinp for the relaxed atmosphere. it-
affords, a strong interest in hovees always has been in the fereground. Carter Bi
wai A principal force in astablishing T as an equestrian cenﬁvz off netional lmpor sance.
Brown opensed riding trails, started Lryun s annual horse and houvad show and s#e@plech ase,
and popularized fox hunting. At the Inn he maintained the Galaw Stables of viding and
steeplechase horsos and he kemnelled hounds. In developing Tryon's reputation as a rid
and hunting center, he built on a tradition that dated from the early 18005 when seitletvs
from t£he South Carclina Low Country laid out race paths in the area for horse sing and
huritiong. Many of the fivs: residents of Tryon had re-established these sports, and
Brown pr@seﬂ”Pd o make them pavr of Tryon's essential business and ecmmunity character.
Through Brown's efforts, thesa sporting activities attracted meny &f the peokle, including
the U. 5. Equestrian Team which was based in Tryon for many years, and contributed a great
deal to the atmosphere of Tryon. The Pine Crest Inn continues to be identified with those

effortn.

Brown's interest in horses was ascociated with his inierest inm local architecturz. He
stabilized a fort and trading vost known as the Block House and converted it to a private
residence, as well as encoursged its nomination to tha MNational Register. He also carved
out the Harmon Field race course next Uo the Block Hovse, the site of the horse show and
Lootba1;( basebzall and track events. DBrown strongly demonstrated his architectural
interests at the Inn; he designad and built four of the cotta
to the properiy and converted them to rasort cottages.

e

and moved three log cabins




FHA-8-300  (11-75]

%’ﬁ”‘ﬁ@ 2% @f
i 26k I @; wamsm\, ﬁ:: vice

o F“ﬂs‘wa“‘@

ftern number 5 Pags three

Browvn aiso insliituted many activities associated solely with the Pine Crect Imn. These
included Thanksgiving dinner preceding the opening formal fox hunt of the seaszun; weekly
barbecues at the large outside stone fireplace; mid-day and meonlicht picnics in the
ourroundéng mountainsg; and candlelight Sunday evening buffet suppers, followed by group
singing. iln also established a school im.a cottage once loecated on the site of the
Eritton Cottage. This one-room building with a large pbreh on which the desks wers located
accoumodatad five to twenty students. They were Iun guests and childven of former guests

who becswma permanent Trycon residents, and they were taught by a Miss Fasicl.

Ta 1951, Carter Brown sold the Inn to a partner, Edwin McLean. = Brown continued to live
in Tryon until the late 1960s when he returned permanently to Castle Park, Michipan wheve
he died in 1973. McLean and subsequeni owner Bob Ernst continued to maintain the high
standards of the Inn established by Brown. Current owners Bob and Fran Hull acquired the
Inn in 1972 and procecled to restore those cottages which MclLean end Erunst had stopped
using. Through the taleats of Fran Bull, who cooks all of the meslc served in the dining

room, the Pine Crest Inn has earned another fine reputaticn for its gourmet foods.

FOOTNOTES .

1. . .
“Diane E. Lea and Claudia Roberis, An Architectural and Historical Suxrvey of Tryom,
M. €. (Raleigh, M. C.; N. ¢, Division of Archives and History, 19792}, p. L.

ZT’W 1 p. 2.

2]

“Polk County Registry of Deeds, Book #22, Page 60, June 6, 190,
&

"Polk County Regiutry of Deeds, Book #31, Page 152.

“Carter W. Brown, letter to Claudia P. Roberts, 30 May 19%0.

6P01k County Registry of Deeds, Book #39, Page 409, February 28, 1920.
7Carter W. Brown.

8 .

Lea and Robarts, p. 7.

9

Carter V. Brown.

1OPolk County Registry of Deeds, Book #95, Page 274, December 19, 1951,
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